
 
 

Please ask for: 

Lisa Young 
Direct dial: 

(023) 9254 5340 
Fax: 

(023) 9254 5587 
E-mail: 

lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk 
 

8 March 2022 
 

S U M M O N S 
 
MEETING: Economic Development Board 
DATE: 16 March 2022 
TIME: 6.00 pm 
PLACE: Council Chamber 
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young 

 

 
PAUL GRANT 
BOROUGH SOLICITOR AND MONITORING OFFICER 
 

 
MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 

The Mayor, Councillor Hook (ex-Officio) 
Chairman of the Policy and Organisation Board, Councillor Burgess (ex-Officio) 

 
Councillor Philpott (Chairman) 

 Councillor Beavis (Vice Chairman) 
 

Councillor Bateman 
Councillor Casey 
Councillor Mrs Furlong 
Councillor Hutchison 
Councillor Johnston 
 

Councillor Mrs Jones 
Councillor Miss Kelly 
Councillor Mitchell 
Councillor Pepper 
Councillor Scard 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 
FIRE PRECAUTIONS 

 
(To be read by the Chairman if members of the public are present) 

 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE: 
 

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request. 

 
If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page). 

 
NOTE: 
 

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak.  

 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting. 

 

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 

consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded.  

 



Economic Development Board 
16 March 2022 

 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
 

1.   Apologies for non-attendance   

2.   Declarations of Interest   

 All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.   
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2021 and the 
extraordinary meeting held on 9 February 2022 (Pages 1 - 10) 

 

 To sign as a true and correct record of the minutes of the meeting 
held on 17 November 2021 and the extraordinary meeting held on 9 
February 2022. 
 

 

4.   Deputations - Standing Order 3.4   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 14 March 2022.  The total 
time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes). 
 

 

5.   Public Questions - Standing Item 3.5   

 (NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
14th March 2022) 
 
 

 

6.   Park and Float Trial - Review (Pages 11 - 20)  

 To update the Economic Development Board on the six month Park 
and Float Trial which was concluded on 31st December 2021, as 
specified in the Report to Full Council on 19th May 2021. 
 

 

7.   Concessions Policy and Pilots (Pages 21 - 34)  

 This report sets out a concessions policy for the Council together  



Economic Development Board 
16 March 2022 

 
 

with proposals for the Council to operate new pilot concessions this 
summer. 
 

8.   Any Other Items   

9.   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC   

 Alver Valley Country Park 

- Acquisition of approx. 25 

Acres of Freehold Land 

That in relation to the 
following items the public 
be excluded from the 
meeting, as it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the 
business to be transacted 
or the nature of the 
proceedings, that if 
members of the public were 
present during these items 
there would be disclosure 
to them of exempt 
information within 
Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972, and 
further that in all 
circumstances of the cases, 
the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption 
outweighs the public 
interest in disclosing the 
information, for the reasons 
set out in the report. 
 

Chief 
Executive  

 

 

10.   Alver Valley Country Park - Acquisition of approx. 25 Acres of 
Freehold Land (Pages 35 - 40) 

 

 This report sets out the details of the Council's proposed purchase of 
approximately 25 acres of freehold land at the Alver Valley Country 
Park  
 

 



Economic Development Board 
17 November 2021 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 17 NOVEMBER 2021 

 
 
The Mayor Councillor Burgess 
 
Councillors Philpott, Bateman, Beavis, Casey, Hutchison, Johnston, Mrs Jones, Miss Kelly, 
Pepper and Scard 
 
 
70. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
Apologies for non attendance were received from Councillor Furlong and Councillor 
Mitchell.  
 
71. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor Philpott declared an interest in agenda item 6 and advised that he would leave 
the room and take no part in the discussion or voting thereon.  
 
 
72. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

BOARD HELD 22 SEPTEMBER 2021  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the Economic Development Board held on 
the 22 September 2021 be signed as a true and correct record.  
 
73. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
A deputation was received from Councillor Westeby.  
 
74. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ITEM 3.5  
 
There were none.  
 
75. LOCAL CYCLING AND WALKING INFRASTRUCTURE PLAN - GBC RESPONSE 

TO HCC CONSULTATION  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Manager of Planning Policy.   
 
Councillor Westerby addressed the Board as Ward Councillor She advised that she had 
been talking to residents and businesses in Royal Clarence Yard (RCY). 
 
The report was welcome, but it was felt that there was a missed opportunity on route 268 to 
take the path directly through the RCY. Doing this would increase footfall in the area and 
help to support business potential.  
 
The frontage of RCY was large and wide and ideal for cycling and the proposal for route 
268 bypassed the opportunity completely. The inclusion of RCY would support the four 
point plan for the improvement of area, with improved lighting and the development of HAZ 
sites.  

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Economic Development Board 
17 November 2021 

 

2 

 
It was hoped that if the path was rerouted then those using it would stop and enjoy the 
facilities on offer.  
 
The Board was advised that the strategy for RCY had been in place for 10 years but that 
very little progress had been made in implementing it.  
 
It was hoped that the prom would be opened up and the Victorian Quay utilised, as well as 
opening up a ferry option to Portsmouth.  
 
It was felt that it would also be useful for the proposal to connect Fort Brockhurst to the 
Town Centre and that although it was felt that this wasn’t acceptable as part of the 
proposal, it would be considered suitable for inclusion.  
 
It was hoped that the local cycling groups, Hampshire County Council and the local MP 
would support this.  
 
The Board was advised that there were many areas suitable for cycling in the Borough and 
that the proposal could be considered weak given the options available.  
Commitment should be given to creating cycle routes away from busy roads and it was also 
felt there should be better use of the potential of the Millennium Promenade as a route.  
 
It was requested that proposal 268 be reconsidered to include the Millennium Promenade 
and that in the introduction to the document that earlier engagement be undertaken with 
stakeholders. In addition it was requested that consideration be given to improving the 
lighting along Royal Clarence Yard, highlighting the history of the promenade and improve 
the signage.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question, Councillor Westerby advised that concern had been 
expressed that the consultation had not been as engaging as it was hoped it would be. 
Responses had been low and it was suggested that more could be done to improve this as 
it was felt it had not been publicised enough.  
 
Members sympathised as it was felt there were other areas in which unadopted roads had 
been neglected by developers that had the potential to be utalised as cycle routes and felt 
that the amendment suggested should be included.  
 
Members were advised that it was acceptable to add Councillor Westerby’s suggestion to 
the document and would add to the document the exact wording. Consideration would also 
be given to Hardway and the options that could be possible. It was felt that the proposal 
wasn’t aspirational enough and that Hampshire County Council could have undertaken 
greater engagement, this would also be included in the response and it would be requested 
that there be ongoing discussions with cyclists and walkers groups and that further 
consideration be given to the safety of pedestrians and cyclists.  
 
Members felt that there should be a greater onus on the developers of sites to ensure that 
roads were in a condition in which they could be adopted and that this was particularly 
important in areas where there was no public transport.  
 
It was also requested that at 1.10 of the proposal that the document be a working document 
that covered a longer term and was more ambitious.  



Economic Development Board 
17 November 2021 

 

3 

 
Members felt that the proposal should have an aspirational completion date on it that was 
realistic, but gave an idea of when proposals would be implemented. If the document was 
purely aspirational a date may not be necessary, but one should be included if the project 
was to move forward.  
 
The Board was advised that it was the early days of the proposal and that funding would 
still need to be obtained.  
 
It was suggested that consideration be given to a scheme at the Alver Valley and that there 
was the potential for Section 106 funding.  
 
The Board was advised that none of the schemes had funcing in place but that it was 
important to have proposals for when opportunities arose and that there was no order of 
preference.  
 
Daisy Lane had been identified by both Hampshire County Council and Gosport Borough 
Council as a priority and it was requested that this be looked as part of the cycling to 
schools project  
 
Members reiterated their desire to see more local engagement with stakeholders.  
 
Members advised that a meeting had taken place with Sustran in 2019 and it was felt 
important that the attendees of that meeting had been given the opportunity to contribute to 
the document.  
 
Members acknowledged that Weevil Lane had not been adopted yet and that Berkley 
Homes were still the owners of it and that the adoption of it to public highway would be a 
matter for the developer and the Highway Authority to negotiate.  
 
The Board agreed to incorporate the comments mentioned within the GBC response.  
 
Resolved: That the Council: 

i) Supports and welcomes the LCWIP to order to improve walking and cycling 
infrastructure within the Borough. 
 

ii) Recommends to HCC that the LCWIP references a suggested list of additional 
walking and cycling -related schemes in Gosport Borough and relevant routes 
into neighbouring local authority areas. 
 

iii) Delegates authority to the Manager of Traffic and Transport to provide detailed 
technical and typographical comments to HCC. 

 
76. 2021-36 DRAFT CULTURAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY, EVIDENCE BASE AND 

ACTION PLAN  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Economic Development and Regeneration 
Manager requesting that the Board considers the contents of the 2021-36 Draft Cultural 
Development Strategy, Evidence Base and Action Plan supporting it, and give its approval 
to carry out a short public consultation exercise.  



Economic Development Board 
17 November 2021 

 

4 

 
The Board was advised that if approved the consultation would begin the following week 
and would run for 6 weeks into January, with the results reported at a future meeting of the 
Board.  
 
Members welcomed that the proposal was aspirational and ambitious and provided great 
detail.  
 
Members questioned which methods of consultation would be undertaken and how it would 
be ensured that it reached as many people as possible, particularly if they did not use social 
media. Members suggested the use of Coastline but it was accepted that this consultation 
did not fall correctly within publication dates. Coastline was the method that reached every 
property in the Borough and it was acknowledged that TV and Radio advertising were cost 
prohibitive and that local news would not be interested unless they were deemed 
newsworthy to the region. Consistency in approach could not be achieved as the news 
channels would not cover each consultation equally.  
 
Members were reminded that MIBs were used to inform Members. It was also agreed that 
more targeted information could be provided to interest groups and ask Members to share 
the details on their social media accounts.  
 
Members reflected that local heritage, arts and interest groups should be contacted directly 
and requested to contribute.  
 
Members welcomed the report and were keen to hear how access to arts events would be 
provided.  
 
The Board was advised that the Borough had been identified as a priority for the Arts 
Council and advised that a number of the points in the action plan were already underway. 
Work was already ongoing to deliver projects in early 2022 and it was intended that there 
would be appropriate reviews and a drive for community engagement.  
 
Members recognised the importance of the arts and wanted to provide opportunities within 
the Borough for young people to engage with them.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 
 

i) that the Board notes the contents of the 2021-36 Draft Cultural Development Strategy, 

Evidence Base and Action Plan. 

 

ii) that the Board agrees to the commencement of a short external consultation involving 
Members, residents, local businesses, community groups and regional/sub-regional 
stakeholders on the basis of the agreed draft documents. 
 
77. FAREHAM LOCAL PLAN 2037: STATEMENT OF COMMON GROUND BETWEEN 

FAREHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL AND GOSPORT BOROUGH COUNCIL  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Planning Policy Manager detailing the Fareham 
Local Plan 2037: Statement of Common Ground between Fareham Borough Council and 
Gosport Borough Council.  



Economic Development Board 
17 November 2021 

 

5 

 
The Board was advised that Fareham Borough Council had already signed the statmenet 
and that if Gosport Borough Council agreed then there would be an examination of the 
evidence base undertaken in public. 
 
The Board was advised that there was no date set as yet, but that it was anticipated to be in 
the New Year. It was requested that access be made available to GBC residents as it was 
important to continue to objecting to proposals such as those that were proposed for land 
off of Newgate Lane.  
 
RESOLVED: That: 
The Fareham Local Plan 2037: Statement of Common Ground between Fareham Borough 
Council and Gosport Borough Council (Appendix 1) be approved and that the Head of 
Planning and Regeneration duly signs it on behalf of the Council. 
 
 
78. HIGH STREET HERITAGE ACTION ZONE PROJECT G14: HIGH STREET 

MARKETS DEVELOPMENT  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Economic Development and Regeneration 
Manger updating the Economic Development Board with progress on the Gosport High 
Street Heritage Action Zone (HSHAZ) project to enhance and reinvigorate Gosport High 
Street’s Saturday and Tuesday markets. 
 
The Board was advised that an additional report would be presented in the spring. The 
project was now moving forward.  
 
Members recognised that the market had suffered and that it was a shame as it had once 
been the largest in the South Coast.  
 
It was felt that attendance at the market would improve if the approach to the High Street 
was made more appealing. The Board was advised that work was ongoing with the Police 
to make this happen.   
 
A Member questioned whether the use and hire of gazebos was something that was being 
considered. The Board was advised that this could be explored but it would involve finding 
storage, but options to rent and sell gazebos.  
 
There was a desire for the market to be a success and the plan would allow more detailed 
work to be considered and undertaken to improve it.  
 
The Board noted the report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
79. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
There were none.  



Economic Development Board 
17 November 2021 

 

6 

 
80. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED: That in relation to the following item the public should be excluded from the 
meeting, as it is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of 
the proceedings, that if members of the public were present during this item there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information within Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972, and further that in all circumstances of the cases, the public interest 
in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information, for 
the reasons set out in the report. 
 
 
81. HSHAZ LEASE OF 51-52 HIGH STREET, GOSPORT  
 
 Consideration was given to an exempt report of the Head of Economic Development and 
Regeneration.  
 
The report was exempt as the contracts are at the point of the Board were still subject to 
negotiations.  
 
RESOVED: That the recommendations be approved.  
 
82. EXEMPTIONS FROM CORPORATE PROCUREMENT REGULATIONS FOR 

HSHAZ STRATEGIC INITIATIVES  
 
Consideration was given to an exempt report of the Economic Development and 
Regeneration Manager.  
 
The report was exempt as negotiations with various organisations would still be ongoing at 
the time of the November Board and as such will be ‘Commercially Confidential’. Details of 
these should therefore not be put into the public domain. 
 
RESOLVED: That the recommendation in the report be approved.  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 7.11 pm 

 
 



Economic Development Board 
9 February 2022 

 

1 

A MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
WAS HELD ON 9 FEBRUARY 2022 

 
 
 
Councillors Philpott, Beavis, Mrs Furlong, Hutchison, Johnston, Mitchell and Scard 
 
 
83. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE  
 
There were none.  
 
84. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were none.  
 
85. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4  
 
There were none.  
 
86. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ITEM 3.5  
 
There were none.  
 
87. FAREHAM BOROUGH LOCAL PLAN STATEMENT OF COMMON GROUND  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Planning Policy Manager detailing the following.  
 
In accordance with the Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) public 
bodies have a duty to cooperate on planning issues that cross administrative boundaries.  
Consequently it is necessary for both Gosport Borough Council (GBC) and Fareham 
Borough Council (FBC) to agree a Statement of Common Ground (SoCG) for their 
respective Local Plans.  
 
Members will recall that an initial version of the SoCG for the Fareham Local Plan 2037 
(FLP2037) between the two authorities was agreed by this Board on 17th November 2021.  
This highlighted that there was an outstanding highway issue that needed further research 
and that it may be necessary to revise the SoCG accordingly. This report sets out the 
details surrounding this outstanding issue. 
 
The Board was advised that the original objection to the transport issues had been 
addressed.  
 
In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that a request had been made to 
be present at the inquiry it would be down to the inspector to determine it officers would be 
allowed to attend.  
 
As there was support for the removal of proposals on the HA2 site, this would not require 
attendance as attendance was permitted for those that felt that the Local Plan was not 
sound.  
 

Public Document Pack



Economic Development Board 
9 February 2022 

 

2 

In this instance the proposed developer may be allowed to attend as it is anticipated they 
would feel the plan was not sound. If a change was proposed there would be a need for 
another consultation period and there was no way to fast track the application.  
 
The Board was advised that there was an awareness that the proposed developer had 
been leaflet dropping to the neighbouring areas of Peel Common, Stubbington and 
Bridgemary North advising of their desire to construct additional properties. 
 
Fareham Borough Council’s current Local Plan was amended in 2014 and the Council were 
under pressure across varying locations in the Borough because of proposed sites. 
Concern was expressed that the location at Newgate Lane East was determined to be more 
suitable as the impact of Fareham residents would be less.  
 
Concern was also expressed that as Fareham Borough Council had failed to meet their 
Housing Delivery Test there would be increased pressure for the site to be used.    
 
The growth of the Borough would not impact on the outside of the Borough and the 
agreement for the provision of the transport network were based on the current figures.  
 
The Board was advised that there was headroom within the current modelling growth for 
development within the Borough and that this would not impact on the Local Plan. The 
inspector would acknowledge when there are no more suitable sites for growth and this 
could be used to prove a need for the Newgate Lane sites. There was not an immediate 
need for this.  
 
The Board was advised that the Gosport growth was on figures of 3500 dwellings and if the 
Borough were required to take any more there would need to be an additional transport 
assessment based on higher figures.  
 
There was great concern that the proposed properties in Fareham would increase the 
damage to the Borough and recognised that there had already been a number of 
consultations.  
 
There was significant concern expressed at any proposal to utilise either the Stubbington 
bypass, or Newgate Lane East for and that these developments would erode the character 
of the Strategic Gap.  
 
It was accepted that the Council would need to sign the Statement of Common Ground and 
that Fareham Borough Council had already signed it.  
 
RESOLVED:  
That the Board: 

 Approves the Second Version of the Fareham Local Plan 2037: Statement of Common 
Ground between Fareham Borough Council and Gosport Borough Council (Appendix 1) and 
that the Head of Planning and Regeneration duly signs it on behalf of the Council.  

 That this Council withdraws its holding objection to the Fareham Local Plan 2037 on the 
specific highway matter detailed in this report.   

 
 
 



Economic Development Board 
9 February 2022 

 

3 

 
  
 
 
 
 
88. ANY OTHER ITEMS  
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

 
Concluded at 6.27 pm 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Board/Committee: Economic Development Board 

Date of meeting: 16th March 2022 

Title: Park and Float Trial – Review 

Author: Head of Streetscene/Head of Planning & Regeneration & 
Assistant to the Chief Executive 

Status: For Information 

 

Purpose 

To update the Economic Development Board on the six month Park and Float Trial 
which was concluded on 31st December 2021, as specified in the Report to Full 
Council on 19th May 2021. 

 

Recommendation 

That the Council notes the review of the Park and Float Trial. 

 

 

1.0 Background 
 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Gosport Ferry Ltd (GFL) approached Gosport Borough Council (GBC) at 
the end of 2020 with a proposal for an attractively priced Park and Float 
scheme, whereby parking and ferry tickets could be purchased under a 
single payment. The intention was to deliver: 
 

 Environmental goals and influencing travel choices to reduce car 
journeys from Gosport to Portsmouth. 

 Increasing footfall within Gosport Town Centre. 

 Increased revenue for GFL and GBC, the former having been 
adversely affected by the pandemic and lockdown. 

 
At that time an existing Park and Float scheme was operating, selling an 
average of 40 monthly Park and Float tickets in pre-Covid times. The 
existing single user Park and Float monthly (paper ticket only) permit cost 
£102.00, with the income split between the Borough Council and GFL - 
£50 and £52 respectively. 
 
A working group involving the two organisations, assisted by Portsmouth 
City Council (PCC), Hampshire County Council (HCC) and First Bus, was 
formed to enable proposals for an enhanced Park and Float scheme to be 
devised. Following discussions a preferred range of ticketing options was 
put forward, and a six month trial was authorised by Full Council on 19th 
May 2021, including a temporary alteration to the Council’s “Fees and 

Agenda Item 6



 
1.4 
 
 
 

Charges”. 
 
Following the development of the digital systems and preparation of the 
marketing materials and signage, the trial was commenced on the 28th 
June and ran until the 31st December 2021, with all partners meeting every 
two months to specifically review the trial and highlight / resolve any issues 
arising. During the Trial the then previous Park and Float scheme was 
suspended, and was not re-instated at the end of the trial, partly to enable 
a review of the impacts of the trial. 
 

2.0 Operation of the Park and Float Trial 
 

 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
For the duration of the Trial all ticket purchases were made through the 
paperless software provider, MiPermit, as with other digital transactions in 
the Borough. It was accepted that whilst this would possibly deter some of 
the community from purchasing tickets, it was the most practical and cost-
effective method of vending. Issues arising from this would be monitored 
and solutions sought. Parking was available in Walpole long-stay car park 
only, as including other car parks (for example short-stay facilities close to 
the interchange) would have required complex changes to the “Gosport 
Borough Council, Off Street Parking Places, Civil Parking Enforcement 
Order 2020”, which was not appropriate or financially viable for a short trial 
period. 
 
Four types of tickets were made available to increase flexibility and 
encourage a wider mix of users: 
 

 a reduced cost Monthly ticket for regular commuters 

 a daily ticket for occasional users 

 a family ticket and   

 a Carnet (10 trip) ticket, offering flexibility in use 
 
 
The costs / income split: 
 

 Monthly Ticket (single user) - £70.00 (£35.00 to GBC / £35.00 to 
GFL) – a reduction of £15 per ticket for GBC parking / £17 per ticket 
for GFL over the previous arrangement.   

 

 Daily Ticket (single user) - £7.00 (£3.50 to GBC / £3.50 to GFL) - a 
reduction of £2.50 per ticket for GBC parking / £0.30 per standard 
open ended return ticket for GFL. 

 

 10-Trip Carnet - £40.00 (£20 to GBC / £20 to GFL). 
 

 Family Ticket (2 adults and up to 3 children) - £9.90 (£3.00 to GBC / 
£6.90 to GFL) - a reduction of £3.00 per ticket for GBC parking / 
£4.10 per Family Saver Ticket for GFL. 
 



 
 
2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.5 
 
 
 

 
All partners assisted with publicising the scheme to as wide an audience 
as possible with a  combination of press releases together with physical 
and digital media (including web-based and social media feeds). Over 30 
signs provided by HCC (at their cost) were displayed on strategic routes 
throughout the Borough to direct users to the car park and provide a visual 
presence for the Trial. Additional signs were also displayed along the High 
Street, which was designated route from the car park to the ferry terminal, 
to encourage users to walk through / use the facilities within the Town 
Centre. PCC also promoted of the trial using a number of their digital bus 
stop displays in key locations.  
 
Additionally, First Bus designated a bus stop immediately opposite the car 
park to transport Park and Float customers free of charge via the “One-
stop-hop” to / from the Bus Station. 
 

3.0 Costs, Revenue and Usage 
 

 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Both the physical and digital start-up costs were low with HCC spending 
£1,786 on the highway signage and GBC spending £1,000 on 
development fees to MiPermit for setting up the digital permits and back 
office systems. A ticket scanner for GFL to validate digital tickets was 
provided free of charge by MiPermit.  
 
Officer time, particularly from Streetscene (Wayne Voller), Planning 
(Andrew Broster) and Economic Development and Regeneration (Elke 
Dickson) was spent assisting in the set up the Trial and preparing the 
previous report to Full Council. In addition to direct officer time in 
developing the background systems, publicity and signage the working 
group (which included additional partners as the scheme developed) met 
12 times between September 2020 and February 2022 to discuss the 
project.  GFL have not disclosed their costs. 
 
Revenue for the trial totalled £6,645 (average of £1,108/month) for GBC 
and £9,853 (average of £1,642 / month) for GFL, which is far below GFL’s 
initial predictions of revenue, when divided up monthly  
 
Low Case = £5,275 per month to GBC / £5,763 to GFL (total £11,038) 
based on 90 monthly permits + 625 daily tickets (500 single / 125 family) 
 
Mid Case = £8,088 per month to GBC / £8,819 to GFL (total £16,907) 
based on 140 monthly permits + 938 daily tickets (750 single / 188 family) 
 
Upper Case = £13,700 per month to GBC / £14,675 to GFL (total £28,375) 
based on 270 monthly permits + 1,250 daily tickets (1000 single / 250 
family) 
 
Note – these predictions did not include the “Carnet” 10-trip type ticket. 



 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.5 
 
 
 
 
 
3.6 
 
 
 
3.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.8 
 
 
3.9 
 
3.10 

 
 
 
These projections were recognised at the time by GBC as likely being 
optimistic, particularly with the ever-changing situation during the 
Pandemic and with many workplaces requiring/encouraging staff to work 
from home. A key assumption for the usage projections presented by GFL 
was that the Portsmouth Naval Base were to encourage their staff to make 
use of the Gosport Ferry.  However usage by this organisation did not take 
place as projected, as this would have required organisation change by the 
Navy regarding entitlement for their staff to park (free of charge) on-site, 
which we understand did not happen.  
 
Whilst usage during the Trial showed no obvious trends, there were some 
clear spikes for Family ticket sales during school holidays, and also on the 
weekends of the Victorious Festival and particularly the Great South Run 
where we understand that GFL undertook active marketing of the Trial with 
the promoters of that event. 
 
First Bus reported 47 one-way Park and Float trips using their service 
during the Trial, which is relatively low compared to the total number of 
Park and Float tickets sold. 
 
Throughout the Trial it has not been possible to determine if customers 
who used the scheme would have already chosen to park in Gosport and 
then purchased standard ferry tickets. The fluctuating Covid restrictions 
throughout the trial has meant there is no reliable baseline to compare to.   
With restrictions only recently being lifted (unfortunately after the agreed 
trial period had finished) the effects of the Pandemic on the trial is 
considered to have had a negative influence on take-up, particularly given 
the changing Government Work from Home requirements.  It is considered 
that users are likely to have been reluctant to invest in a ticket if they were 
unsure how often they would have been able to make use of it. It is 
therefore difficult to assess whether GBC or GFL have increased or 
decreased revenue as a result of the scheme. Likewise, in the context of 
the effects of Covid it is not possible to assess if there was increased trade 
to local businesses or a reduction in car journeys to Portsmouth attributed 
to the trial.  
 
A survey of customers’ travelling habits was requested by GBC from 
MiPermit but was never completed.   
 
Park and Float revenue and usage is shown in tabular form at Appendix A. 
 
Usage of the car park by all customers is shown at Appendix B.  
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

4.0 Complaints and Adverse Issues 
 

 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 

 
There were no formal complaints to GBC/GFL about the trial or suspension 
of the previous scheme, and none recorded on the Streetscene Facebook 
page when information about the scheme was posted.  First Bus have 
noted that they received just two complaints relating to ticket validation 
early on in the trial, however these were minor and were quickly and/or 
satisfactorily resolved. 
 
During the very early stages of the Trial there were a very small number of 
minor issues with validation of payment by customers when virtual tickets 
were scanned at the terminal but these were individually resolved within 
minutes with GFL being able to obtain the required information from GBC. 
No one was wrongly refused passage as a result and all software issues 
were resolved successfully. 
 
The designated car park reaching full capacity was a concern and as a 
result customers were warned at the time of purchase that having a virtual 
permit did not guarantee a parking space. Throughout the trial period the 
car park was monitored daily by Streetscene Enforcement Officers. There 
were contingencies in place to enable the temporary suspension of the 
scheme should it be felt full-capacity would be reached but this did not 
happen at any time throughout the scheme. 
 
 
GBC and GFL received a total of three complaints after the trial ended, 
from customers who wanted to continue to use it. At the request of GFL the 
original Park and Float permit scheme was not re-established at the end of 
the trial, and to date there have been no complaints received about this. 
 

5.0 Conclusion 
 

 
5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
5.3 

 
1,186 permits of differing types were sold. However, as already mentioned 
a quantifiable review of the commercial success of the trial is very difficult 
to undertake, given the restrictions and measures in place during the 
pandemic. Likewise, the reduction in vehicular journeys to Portsmouth and 
the increase in footfall to Gosport Town Centre is difficult to quantify 
compared to the ever-moving background of the effects of the Pandemic 
on travel / shopping habits. 
 
An effective scheme was designed and implemented in a relatively short 
space of time. The trial showed that with collaborative working, effective 
and easy to use digital permits for multi-modal journeys can be developed. 
 
Owing to the background / development work already having been 



 
 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.6 
 
 
 
5.7 

completed, it could be possible to re-establish a revised scheme in a short 
space of time, if we wished to explore further use of the more popular 
Family Ticket, or any other permutations in the future, now that restrictions 
have been lifted. 
 
From parking ticket sales generally there is an indication that a greater 
proportion of customers are now using MiPermit to pay for car parking 
compared to six months ago but this could be a result of a recent publicity 
drive by the Borough Council. The use of MiPermit has cost-benefits to the 
Council in terms of reducing cash-collection fees and negating parking 
meter malfunctions. 
 
Despite their initial approach to discuss establishing an enhanced Park and 
Float scheme, GFL have indicated that at this point in time they do not 
wish to re-establish the scheme with the same ticketing options and prices, 
and at present have no immediate desire to re-establish it in any form. The 
re-establishment of the project would require the participation of both GBC 
and GFL. It is proposed that following a post-trial review period GBC 
officers continue to work with GFL to establish whether there are any 
potential options to be explored. At this stage potential options could 
include the consideration of building upon the family ticket success, 
perhaps with a focus on linking in with GBC / PCC events programmes, 
which could assist in the take up of ferry use to off-set any potential long-
term effects of a slow recovery of commuter based trips due to people 
establishing new working patters, such as continued working from home. 
 
Should a further trial or revised ticketing be undertaken in the future the 
monitoring of patronage, including qualitative data on user’s views and any 
changes to travel habits should be included from the start. 
 
In more recent discussion, HCC have indicated that they are very pleased 
with the development of the digital ticketing system through the trial, and 
are keen to explore bringing the Gosport Ferry into the wider South East 
Hampshire Rapid Transit (SEHRT) network as a key public transport 
provider.  The Gosport Ferry is widely acknowledged as an effective 
transport mode in reducing road-based traffic between Gosport and 
Portsmouth (and the reverse) for both commuting and leisure trips and its 
usage should be encouraged.  Increased usage of the Gosport Ferry 
achieved through modal-shift will also have positive benefits to Air Quality 
in the South-East Hampshire area together with Portsmouth’s recently 
introduced Clean Air Zone.  Going forward HCC are to ensure that GFL 
and the principles of increase use of the ferry and Park and Float are 
included in future discussions regarding the SEHRT network, including tap-
on/tap-off ticketing and future funding bids as they arise. 
 

 

 

 



 

Financial Services comments: Contained within the report 
 

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report  
 

Equality and Diversity: Please see attached Integrated Impact 
Assessment 
 

Climate Change implications: Please see attached Integrated Impact 
Assessment 
 

Crime and Disorder: None 
 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

A successful Park and Float scheme would 
increase the use of the Gosport Ferry, a key 
Public Transport link between Gosport and 
Portsmouth, and potentially increase footfall 
within the High Street. 
 

Corporate Plan: A successful Park and Float scheme would 
assist in improving transport to/ from the 
Borough and contribute to the regeneration 
objectives focussed on the waterfront and town 
centre area.   
 
Increased use of the Gosport Ferry as a key 
public transport link will build upon the Borough 
Council’s aspirations for the regeneration of the 
area and also align well with the proposed 
improvements to the Transport Interchange 
through the Transforming Cities Fund scheme. 
 
A successful scheme could generate additional 
income for the Borough Council 
 

Risk Assessment: There is an element of financial risk with a Park 
and Float scheme if reduced priced tickets are 
mainly purchased by customers who would park 
at Walpole anyway. This cannot be assessed at 
present. 
 

Background Papers: None 
 

Appendices: A: Park and Float Revenue and Usage 
 
B: Usage of the car park by all customers 
 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Wayne Voller/Andrew Broster 
 



 



Appendix A 
 
Park and Float Revenue  
  

  July August September    October November December Total- 6 
months 

Gross 
Revenue to 
GBC 

Admin Expense to 
GBC (transaction + 
credit card fees) 

Net 
revenue to 
GBC 

Revenue to 
GFL 

Single 
person- daily 
£7 

15 29 25    101 97 67 334 £3.50 x 334 
= £1169 

£33.40 + £23.38 = 
£56.78 

£1112.22 3.50 x 334 = 
£1169 

Family- daily 
£9.90 

52 200 70    199 84 113 718 £3 x 718 = 
£2154 

£71.80 + £71.08 = 
£142.88 

£2011.12 £6.90 x 718 
= £4954.20 

Single person 
10-trip carnet 
£40 

0 9 7    20 22 6 64 £20 x 64 = 
£1280 

£64 + £25.60 = £89.6 £1190.40 £20 x 64 = 
£1280 

Single person 
monthly 
permit £70 

4 6 12    18 17 13 70 £35 x 70 = 
£2450 

£70 + £49 = £119 £2331 £35 x 70 = 
£2450 

               

  
 
Appendix B 
 
Walpole Car park usage, during and after the trial 
  

  June July August    September October November December January February (to 22/02/22 

Meter total 2782 3150 4044    3096 3399 3237 3513 2376 1663 

MiPermit parking 264 299 454    389 482 377 388 337 291 

Park and Float 29 75 241    77 309 179 171 0 0 

Total 3075 3524 4739    3562 4190 3793 4072 2713 1954 

             

  
 

 



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Board/Committee: Economic Development Board 

Date of meeting: 16 March 2022 

Title: Concessions Policy and Pilots 

Author: Head of Housing & Borough Solicitor and Monitoring Officer  

Status: For decision 

 

Purpose 

This report sets out a concessions policy for the Council together with proposals for 
the Council to operate new pilot concessions this summer. 

Recommendation 

That the Board approves the attached draft Concessions Policy for public 
consultation and gives delegated authority to the Head of Housing in 
consultation with the Assistant Chief Executive and the Borough Solicitor & 
Monitoring Officer to: 

i) undertake a public consultation of the draft Concessions Policy, such 
public consultation to commence on 19 March 2022; and 

ii) develop and advertise proposals for three new concessions to be 
operated in the Borough on a pilot basis for the summer of 2022, and to 
award concessions to the successful bidders. 

 

1.0 Background 
 

1.1 The Council currently operates two concessions, both of which involve the 
selling of ice-creams, at Stokes Bay and Lee-on-the-Solent. 
 

1.2 The Council has received numerous ideas and enquiries recently regarding 
the operation of additional concessions at various locations in the Borough. 
 

1.3 In response to the enquiries a draft Concessions Policy has been 
developed, which is appended to this report, against which future 
opportunities and bids for concessions will be considered. In the meantime, 
it is proposed that the Council develop and advertise proposals for three 
new concessions to be operated in the Borough on a pilot basis for the 
summer of 2022, and also that the Council awards concessions to the 
successful bidders. 

  
2.0 Report 

 
2.1 A draft Concessions Policy is attached to this report. This has been 

developed by a number of Council Officers giving consideration to factors 
such as economic development, revenue generation, property 
management and tourism. It also forms part of work which is currently 
being conducted to review the Council’s asset base and ensure that this is 

Agenda Item 7



being used to its maximum potential. 
 

2.2 The draft Policy contains a number of criteria and considerations which 
would be taken into account when determining the acceptability of any new 
concession opportunities which might arise as a result of its adoption. It 
must be emphasised that the draft Policy is only concerned with 
concessions, which are defined as, “A fixed term consent to trade from 
Council owned land, where no Council building exists for exclusive use, or 
significant land occupation takes place”. The policy is not concerned with 
other business opportunities in the Borough that the Council is able to deal 
with by way of offering a lease or licence of property, or a different licence 
under a statutory regime. 
 

2.3 The draft Policy seeks to gauge the public’s views on the acceptability and 
suitability of various Council owned sites around the Borough as locations 
for future concessions. A list of these sites forms part of the draft 
Concessions policy in the Appendix. It must be stressed that the Council 
has no preconceived ideas regarding which sites appearing in the draft 
Policy should be included in the final policy and it will need to form a 
conclusion in due course. The results of the public consultation exercise 
will be taken into account with the Policy being reported to a future Board 
for formal adoption. 
 

2.4 
 

The Council also considers that it can further assess demand and 
suitability of concessions by way of operating pilots in the summer of 2022 
especially considering the number of potential sites around the Borough 
set out in the draft Concessions Policy. It is therefore proposed that 
Council Officers consider which site or sites would be best suited to 
operating a pilot concession or concessions for this summer. This will also 
provide an opportunity for local businesses. 
 

2.5 The Council is mindful of existing concessions which are operated in Lee-
on-the-Solent and Stokes Bay and does not intend for any change in policy 
to affect the operation of those concessions before these expire in early 
2023. The Council will also be mindful of existing businesses in the vicinity 
of potential concession locations set out in Appendix 1 when confirming 
which concession opportunities are available, and may determine that 
concessions that complement existing local offers would be appropriate in 
such cases. The Council will also consider the proximity of other local 
services nearby, including public conveniences, when confirming which 
concession opportunities are available. 

  
3.0 Risk Assessment 

 
3.1 A draft Concessions Policy will assist in ensuring that future decisions on 

concessions are made in a rational and consistent manner, in keeping with 
an overarching policy which has been approved by the Council. If the 
Council were not to adopt such a policy its decision making would be 
arbitrary and at greater risk of challenge. 
 



3.2 Carrying out public consultation will assist with assessing the public 
demand and business attitude to new concession locations and 
opportunities. By operating pilot concessions in the summer of 2022 this 
enables further market testing. 
 

4.0 Conclusion 
 

 The Board is asked to endorse the draft Concessions Policy attached for 
public consultation and to agree that Officers can explore opportunities to 
operate three new concession pilots in the Borough during the summer of 
2022. 

 

Financial Services comments: Contained within the report 

Legal Services comments: Contained within the report 

Equality and Diversity: Integrated Impact Assessment not required at 
this stage 

Climate Change implications: Integrated Impact Assessment not required at 
this stage 

Crime and Disorder: N/A 

Service Improvement Plan 
implications: 

N/A 

Corporate Plan: Raise Aspirations – generate a positive 
reputation and image for the borough 
Enhance the Environment – improve community 
leisure facilities and make the most of the 
waterfront 
Develop the economy – support new and small 
businesses 
Deliver effective services – maximise the 
potential to generate income through council 
assets and resources; and continually review 
and improve our processes. 
 

Risk Assessment: See section 3. 

Background Papers:  

Appendices: Draft Concessions Policy (attached) 
 

Report Author/Lead Officer: Paul Grant, Borough Solicitor & Monitoring 
Officer 
Jenna Kitchingham, Consultant, Property 
Services, Portsmouth City Council 
Amanda Baggaley, Corporate Policy & 
Community Safety, Gosport Borough 
Council 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Concessions Policy 
 
 

DRAFT FOR CONSULTATION 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

2 
 

 

Contents 
 

Section Title Page 

1.0 Scope and Definition 3 

2.0 Policy Context 3 

3.0 Aims and Objectives 4 

4.0 Responsibilities 4 

5.0 Evaluation of Concessions 4 

6.0 Concession Application Process 4 

7.0 Decision and Approval 5 

8.0 Completion of Agreement 5 

9.0 Fees 6 

10.0 Monitoring and Review 7 

Appendix  Potential Concession sites in Gosport Borough 8 
 
 

Gosport Borough Council is committed to equal opportunities for all: 

 

If you need this document in large print, on tape, CD, in Braille 

or in other languages, please ask. 

 

Gosport Borough Council 
Town Hall, High Street 
Gosport 
Hampshire 
PO12 1EB 
 
Tel: (023) 9258 4242 
 
 
  



 

3 
 

 

1.0   Scope and Definition 

 
1.1 This policy will apply to all concessions granted for operation along the seafront 

and in the parks, gardens and open spaces owned by Gosport Borough 
Council.  

 
1.2 The Council holds the discretion to amend the policy and fees charged as        

deemed necessary. 
 
1.3 The definition of a concession covered within the terms of this policy is: “A fixed 

term consent to trade from Council owned land, where no Council building 
exists for exclusive use, or significant land occupation takes place”.  

 
1.4 Any request requiring a business lease or street trading licence will not fall        

within the remit of this policy and will be dealt with by the Council’s Property 
Team or Licensing Team respectively.  

 
1.5 Any concession licence offered by the Council grants the licensee the right to 

use the site in common with the Council and members of the public for the 
purpose defined by the licence.  

 
1.6 The Council may suspend or vary operation of a concession subject to the         

licence on 24 hours' notice or immediately in the event of an emergency, if 
repair works to the Council's land, facility or any adjoining foreshore are to be 
carried out. 

 
1.7 The Council may reserve the right to suspend a concession if a public event is 

to take place depending upon the location of the concession and type of 
event. 

 
2.0 Policy Context  

 
2.1 The policy gives guidance on how to fairly manage expressions of interest in a 

fair, open and transparent way leading to the successful take up of commercial 
concessions opportunities for Gosport. The policy assists the Council in 
supporting local businesses and enterprises to gain a platform to start, grow 
and succeed. 

 
2.2 All concessions offered will be considered in the context of Council policies, 

strategies and plans. More information about the Council’s plans can be found 
on our website at http://www.gosport.gov.uk  

 
2.3 The overall aim of the policy is to identify, develop and maximise additional 

commercial opportunities, including the enhancement of existing facilities, 
services and attractions. The provision of new facilities will be encouraged to 
promote and enhance the character of the designated areas.  

  

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/


 

4 
 

3.0 Aims and Objectives 
 
3.1 This policy aims to: 

 
3.1.1 ensure a fair, transparent, and consistent approach to granting 

concessions, which is co-ordinated through the appropriate procedures 
for planning, marketing and management. 
 

3.1.2 ensure that the Council adopts a proactive approach in enabling 
commercial activity in Borough which are a high quality and fit well with 
local needs and aspirations. 
 

3.1.3 encourage and promote activities that fit in with approved local 
strategies and add to the attraction of the Borough.  
 

3.1.4 encourage increased commercial activity across the Borough to provide 
a greater economic benefit. 

 

4.0 Responsibilities  
 
4.1 The authority to make decisions regarding the granting of concession licences 

vests with the Economic Development Board but for concessions of up to a 
year decisions can be taken by chief officers acting in consultation with the 
Borough Treasurer and Borough Solicitor, under the scheme of delegation set 
out in the Council’s constitution.   
 

4.2 The Property Team will be responsible for:  
 
4.2.1 promoting and marketing the available concessions each year 

 
4.2.2 maintaining current information on the Council’s website  

 
4.2.3 reviewing bids for completeness and offering guidance on queries  

 
4.2.4 liaising with other officers, including where necessary, legal and 

insurance officers regarding terms and conditions of each license to 
ensure suitability while protecting the Council’s interests 

 
5.0 Evaluation of Concessions  
 
5.1 Each concession licence holder will be invited to complete an annual         

evaluation questionnaire. Any data gathered from questionnaires will be 
reviewed to help shape future provision and decisions.  

 
6.0  Concession Bid Process  

 
6.1 The Council has identified sites which may be suitable for concessions and 

these are set out in the Appendix to this policy. Notification of how the 
concession sites will be made available to the market will be given as 
appropriate either as previous concessions expire or as determined by the 



 

5 
 

Head of Housing and Property. Only bids for concessions set out in this policy 
will be considered at the appropriate time and no other bids will be considered. 
 

6.2 Upon a concession site becoming available it will be advertised with bids invited 
for submission through the Council’s online procurement portal, Proactis. 
Recent licence holders and those who have requested information about 
available concessions will be directed there for details.         

 
6.3 Concession details, including pitch availability, dates and fees will be         

displayed on the Council’s website once available, together with a link to 
Proactis. Additional marketing via social media and press advertising may be 
considered to increase awareness of licence availability when necessary.  

 
6.4 All bids will be assessed by the Property Team in accordance with the criteria 

set out for determination of the concession which will be published alongside 
the advertised concession opportunity.  

 
6.5 Applicants must complete the online application form on Proactis and follow the 

instructions for submitting all supporting documentation by the stated deadline 
and will receive acknowledgement their application has been successfully 
received or requires additional information to be assessed.  

 
7.0 Decision and Approval 

 
7.1 All bids will be assessed based on the Licence Fee offer, giving consideration 

to the quality of offer, appearance and style of trading unit, sustainability and 
environmental practices, required consents to trade, relevant accreditations, 
health and safety qualifications, track record of business, pricing structure and 
menu choice. 
 

7.2 Traders will be advised to apply promptly for seasonal concessions once the        
application process is open. While it is intended for all pitches to be licensed by 
the start of each season, it will be at the Council’s discretion to accept bids and 
grant licences throughout the year for vacant pitches. 

 
7.3 A decision will be made by Economic Development Board or the appropriate 

officer with delegated authority giving due consideration to a report setting out 
the concession opportunity and recommendation on the bids received. 

 
8.0 Completion of Agreement  

 
8.1 The successful applicants will be advised by the responsible officer from the        

Property Team who will confirm what documentation the applicant is required to 
provide in order for their licence to be completed.  
 

8.2 All concessions must provide the following, where relevant: 
 

8.8.1 Valid Public Liability Insurance to the value of a minimum of £10 million 
 

8.8.2 Valid Employee Liability Insurance  



 

6 
 

 
8.8.3 Risk Assessment specific to the proposal for the agreed site 

  
8.8.4 COVID-19 Safety measures Assessment (if appropriate) 

 
8.8.5 Equipment Safety Certificate   

 
8.8.6 Environmental food safety & Hygiene certificates  

 
8.8.7 Evidence of level 4 or higher classification as set out on the food.gov.uk 

web page for food and drink providers 
 

8.8.8 Duty of Care Waste Transfer Note and/or appropriate evidence of 
method of litter and refuse disposal 

 
8.8.9 BKSA/IKO or equivalent Instructor certification required for all water 

sport activities  
 

8.8.10 Bank and other references may be required for larger concessions plus 
any other necessary relevant certification.  

 
8.3 All concession licences give the named Trader of the licence permission to 

operate at an agreed location under the terms and conditions as set out in the 
licence. It may be accepted by the Council that the licensee may substitute an 
alternative operator in order to continue trading during periods of absence due 
to extenuating circumstances, subject to prior written agreement from the 
Council. 
 

8.4 Concession Licences will be issued for an appropriate term depending on the 
type of concession, whether it is available to trade throughout the year or on a 
seasonal basis, the need to ensure fair competition and also the opportunity to 
encourage new business and entrepreneurship.   

 
9.0 Fees  

 
9.1 The Licence Fee will be payable in advance of the start date by the applicant 

for the Term of the concession licence unless an instalment plan has been 
agreed. 
 

9.2 An administration fee, full payment for the agreed licence period and any legal 
costs incurred in preparation of the licence are required in advance of the start 
date by the applicant unless an instalment plan has been agreed.  

 
9.3 In addition, should the concession operator require the use of electricity or        

water, and they are available at the agreed site, the Council will recharge for 
the full cost of consumption and waste by the concession operator during the 
agreed licence period. 

 



 

7 
 

9.4 In the unlikely event that any other consents are required such as planning       
permission the applicant will need to have obtained and paid for prior to 
approval themselves. 

 
9.5 If an operator chooses to cancel their licence prior to the end of the term, the       

Council reserves the right to retain up to 50% of the Licence Fee referred to in 
9.1. 

 
10.0 Monitoring and Review 

 
10.1 The policy is a live document and it will be regularly reviewed. Any significant 

amendments to the policy will be made subject to approval from the Economic 
Development Board.  

 
10.2 Annual evaluation forms from traders will be reviewed to ensure fair and          

transparent practices and inform future development of concessions. Any trader 
or relevant parties dissatisfied with the Concessions Policy or its procedures 
can make a complaint using the Council’s Complaints Policy.  

  



 

8 
 

Appendix 
 
Concession Categories 
 
There may be opportunity to offer the following type of concessions at the potential 
concession locations listed below 
 

Ice cream and Soft 
Drinks  

Ice cream vans, gelato and specialist sellers (not an 
exclusive list) 

Food and Drinks Hot drinks, slushes and milkshakes, snacks, sandwiches, 
themed cuisine such as vegan (not an exclusive list) 

Water Sports Hire Kayaks and canoes, paddleboards, pedalo hire  (not an 
exclusive list) 

Leisure and Art Fixing bikes, skateboard parts, art supplies, towels etc. 
(complementary to current activities) (not an exclusive list) 

Other Saunas, pop up cinema etc. (not an exclusive list) 

 
 
 
Potential locations for different concession types mentioned above 
 
There should be no direct competition to local business or existing concessions. 
 

Wider Area GBC land and building ownership within this area 

Alver Valley East The Alver Valley open countryside 
BMX track and Pump Track 
Alver Valley East Car park 
17th Century Village (open summer months)  
Play area 

Alver Valley West The Alver Valley open countryside 
Café and toilet 
Play Area 

Stokes Bay Promenade and beach 
Bayside Café and Pebble Beach Café 
Picnic/grass areas and wildgrounds 
Stokes Bay Sailing Club and Gosport Angling Club 
Adventure Golf and tennis courts 
Lifeboat Station 
Car Parks x 6 and Public toilets x 3 
Petanque pitches 
Stanley Park and gardens 
Alverbank Hotel 
Beach Huts 
Kayak and paddleboard hire  
Diving Museum 
Splash Park 

Lee-on-the-Solent 
Seafront 

Promenade  
Shingle beach (excluding area owned by the crown and in line 
with any byelaws) 
On the Water Café/Restaurant 



 

9 
 

Car parks x 4 and Public toilets x 3 
Clifflands and grassed area 
Lee Sailing Club and Elmore Angling Club 
17 Wooden Beach huts 
Splash Park, play area and skate park 
Olympia Amusement Arcade, pool room and sandwich bar 

Lee Recreation 
Ground 

Recreation ground, football pitches and playground 
Scout Hut and Horticultural Society building 
Pavilion, Bowls Club and Green 
Public toilet 

Falkland Gardens Ornamental gardens (with proximity to ferry landing stage and 
bus interchange) 
Public toilet 

Hardway  Footpaths and green area adjacent to shore 
Walkashore pontoon 
Car Park x 2 

Walpole Park Open park for recreation  
Café & Model Yacht Club (Compass Point) 
Large Car Park x 1 
Fitness and play equipment and games area 
Cockle pond and boating lake 

Gosport Park Recreation ground, rugby pitches and playground (with former 
Leisure compound) 
Rugby Club Pavilion and Bowling Club and green 
Car Park 
Scout hut  

Leesland Park 
 

Open recreation park 
Playground and skate park 

Elson Recreation 
Ground 
 

Recreation ground, football pitches and play areas 
Car Park  
Pavilion and changing room 
Gosport and District Sports Association for the Disabled Centre 
(GADSAD) 

Anglesey Gardens 
/ Foster Gardens 
 

Open space 
Bowling Club, pavilion and greens 
Dog Training School 

Rowner Green 
 

Recreation ground with cricket pitch, pavilion and playground 
Car Park and Public Toilet 
Adjacent Woodland and Rowner Copse 

Bridgemary Park Open space 
Bowling Pavilion and Green 
Skate Park and play area 
Car Park 

Privett Park Recreation ground with football and cricket pitches 
Cricket Club pavilion 
Football Club enclosure 
No 2 Pavilion changing rooms and public toilet 
No 3 Pavilion store 
Car Park 

Forton Recreation Open recreation ground with playground and games area 



 

10 
 

Ground Bowling pavilion and green 
Youth centre building 

Grove Road 
Recreation Ground 

Open recreation ground with playground and games area 

Nobes Avenue 
Recreation Ground 

Recreation ground with football pitch, changing room pavilion and 
playground 
Public toilet 

Brookers Field Recreation ground with football pitches and Pavilion 
Car Park 

Howe Road 
Recreation Ground 

Recreation ground with football pitch and pavilion 
Car Park 

Open space 
exceptions 

There may be small areas of open space and car parks not 
mentioned exclusively in the above list which may be identified in 
the future and dealt with as an exception.  

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

 



Document is Restricted

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2021 and the extraordinary meeting held on 9 February 2022
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 09/02/2022 Economic Development Board
	Minutes


	6 Park and Float Trial - Review
	ED Board report Appendices

	7 Concessions Policy and Pilots
	GBC Concessions Policy-working draft FINAL PSG 08032022

	10 Alver Valley Country Park - Acquisition of approx. 25 Acres of Freehold Land
	EDB Report PLAN


